
22 May 2018

To: Councillors Collett, Hobson and Mrs Scott 

The above members are requested to attend the: 

LICENSING PANEL

Wednesday, 30 May 2018 at 6.00 pm
in Committee Room B, Town Hall, Blackpool

A G E N D A

1 APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRMAN 

To appoint a Chairman for the meeting.

2 DECLARATION OF INTEREST - LICENSING 

Members are asked to declare any interests in the items under consideration and in 
doing so state:-

(1) the type of interest concerned

(2) the nature of the interest concerned; and

(3) whether they have or have not sat on a Planning Committee which has previously 
considered a planning application in respect of a licensed premises which is also subject 
to consideration for a premises licence as part of the agenda for this meeting.

If any Member requires advice on declarations of interests, they are advised to contact 
the Head of Democratic Governance in advance of the meeting.

(Members are asked to also pay particular attention to the guidance sheet on interests 
supplied with the agenda).

3 PROCEDURE FOR THE MEETING 

The Chairman of the Panel will summarise the procedure and announce the equal 
maximum amount of time for each party to speak for the hearing.

Public Document Pack



A. Items 1 and 4 (b) will be undertaken in private session by the Panel and not in 
the Meeting Room. 
B. Items 2, 3, 4(a) and 4(c) will be recommended to the Panel to be held in public.
C.         The Panel may decide to exclude the public from all or part of a hearing where it 
considers that the public interest in so doing outweighs the public interest in the 
hearing, or that part of the hearing, taking place in public. (This includes a party and 
any person assisting or representing a party)

4 APPLICATION FOR THE VARIATION OF A PREMISES LICENCE- LA CASA (Pages 1 - 118)

a. APPLICATION AND REPRESENTATIONS SUBMITTED. To consider the attached report

b. DETERMINATION OF THE APPLICATION FOR THE VARIATION OF A PREMISES 
LICENCE- LA CASA

c. ANNOUNCEMENT OF THE DECISION FOR THE VARIATION OF A PREMISES LICENCE- LA 
CASA

Venue information:

First floor meeting room (lift available), accessible toilets (ground floor), no-smoking building.

Other information:

For queries regarding this agenda please contact Lennox Beattie, Executive and Regulatory 
Manager, Tel: 01253 477157, e-mail lennox.beattie@blackpool.gov.uk

Copies of agendas and minutes of Council and committee meetings are available on the 
Council’s website at www.blackpool.gov.uk.

http://www.blackpool.gov.uk/


Report to: Licensing Panel

Date of Meeting : 30 May 2018

APPLICATION TO VARY A PREMISES LICENCE – La Casa, 14 Dickson 
Road

1.0 Purpose of the report:

1.1 To consider an application to vary premises licence PL1868 issued in respect of La 
Casa, 14 Dickson Road. 

2.0

2.1

Recommendation(s):

To consider the application and determine whether the granting of this variation 
would adversely impact on the licensing objectives.

3.0 Reasons for recommendation(s):

3.1 Representations have been received therefore there must be a hearing to determine 
the application.

3.2a Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or 
approved by the Council?

No

3.2b Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council’s approved 
budget?

Yes

3.3 Other alternative options to be considered:

None, once an application is submitted and representations received it  must  be 
considered by the Licensing Panel. 

4.0 Background Information

4.1 On 19 March 2018, the Licensing Service received an application from Janafarag 
Limited to vary the Premises licence issued in respect of La Casa, 14 Dickson Road 
Blackpool.

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



4.2

4.3

4.4

The licence currently authorises the playing of recorded music, late night refreshment and 
the sale of alcohol for consumption on the premises during the following times:

Recorded music and Alcohol: Sun-Thu 17.30-01.00, Fri-Sat 17.30-03.00
Late Night Refreshment: Sun-Thu 23.00- 01.00, Fri-Sat 23.00-03.00

The application requests permission to extend the hours for late night refreshment to 
05.00 daily with the addition of a number of conditions. A copy of the application is 
attached. 

Representations have been received from Lancashire Constabulary, the Licensing 
Authority and a member of the public. Copies of the representations are attached.

Local policy considerations
This premise is situated within the town centre saturation area which, due to 
concerns about crime and disorder and anti-social behaviour arising from the number 
of takeaways in the area, includes applications for late night refreshment. The effect 
of this policy is to create a rebuttable presumption that applications will be refused. 
To rebut this presumption, an applicant would be expected to show through the 
operating schedule, and where appropriate with supporting evidence, that the 
operation of the premises will not add to the cumulative impact already being 
experienced. The following sections of the policy are relevant:

4.7.7 "...the policy will only be overridden in genuinely exceptional cases where the 
applicant can demonstrate that the granting of the application will not 
undermine the policy and the reasons for it."

4.7.8 "An application is not likely to be classed as exceptional merely on the ground 
that the premises have been or will be operated within the terms of its 
licence or that they are/will be well managed. This is to be expected of any 
application."

National policy considerations

9.12 –The police have a key role in managing the night-time economy and should 
have good working relationships with those operating in their local area. The police 
should usually therefore be the licensing authority’s main source of advice on 
matters relating to the promotion of the crime and disorder licensing objective. 
However, any responsible authority under the 2003 Act may make representations 
with regard to any of the licensing objectives if they have evidence to support such 
representations. 

Page 2



4.5

9.43 – The authority’s decision should be evidence-based, justified as being 
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives and proportionate to what 
it is intended to achieve.

14.44 – After receiving relevant representations in relation to a new application or 
for a variation of a licence or certificate, the licensing authority must consider 
whether it would be justified in departing from its special policy in the light of the 
individual circumstances of the case… If the licensing authority decides that an 
application should be refused, it will still need to show that the grant of the 
application would undermine the promotion of one or more of the licensing 
objectives and that appropriate conditions would be ineffective in preventing the 
problems involved.

Observations

The current conditions on the licence are as follows:

Annex 1 - Mandatory conditions

1 No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence -

a) At a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of 
the premises licence,

or

b) At a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a 
personal licence or his personal licence is suspended.

2 Every supply of alcohol under the premise licence must be made or 
authorised by a person who holds a personal licence.

3 (1) The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not 
carry out, arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to 
the premises.

(2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of 
the following activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the 
purpose of encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the 
premises - 

(a) games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to 
require or encourage, individuals to -

(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink 

Page 3



alcohol sold or supplied on the premises before the cessation of the 
period in which the responsible person is authorised to sell or supply 
alcohol), or 

(ii) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or 
otherwise); 

(b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a 
fixed or discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular 
characteristic in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a 
licensing objective; 

(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to 
encourage or reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period 
of 24 hours or less in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining 
a licensing objective; 

(d) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or 
flyers on, or in the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be 
considered to condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to 
refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable manner; 

(e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other 
than where that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason 
of disability).

4 The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on 
request to customers where it is reasonably available. 

5 (1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must 
ensure that an age verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in 
relation to the sale or supply of alcohol. 
(2) The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence 
must ensure that the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in 
accordance with the age verification policy.
(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person 
to be under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the 
policy) to produce on request, before being served alcohol, identification 
bearing their photograph, date of birth and either a holographic mark, or an 
ultraviolet feature. 

6 The responsible person must ensure that -

(a) where any of the following alcoholic drinks are sold or supplied for 
consumption on the premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied 

Page 4



having been made up in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely closed 
container) it is available to customers in the following measures -

(i) beer or cider: ½ pint; 
(ii) gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and 
(iii) still wine in a glass: 125 ml; 

(b) these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed 
material which is available to customers on the premises; and 

(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the 
quantity of alcohol to be sold, the customer is made aware that these 
measures are available.

7 (1) A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for 
consumption on or off the premises for a price which is less than the 
permitted price. 

(2) In this condition:- 
a. “permitted price” is the price found by applying the formula P = D + (D 

x V), where- 
i. P is the permitted price, 
ii. D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol 

as if the duty were charged on the date of the sale or supply 
of the alcohol, and 

iii. V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the 
alcohol as if the value added tax were charged on the date of 
the sale or supply of the alcohol; 

b. “duty” is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor 
Duties Act 1979; 

c. “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which 
there is in force a premises licence- 

i. the holder of the premises licence, 
ii. the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such 

a licence, or 
iii. the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply 

of alcohol under such a licence; 
d. “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which 

there is in force a club premises certificate, any member or officer of 
the club present on the premises in a capacity which enables the 
member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and 

e. “value added tax” means value added tax charged in accordance with 
the Value Added Tax Act 1994. 

(3) Where the permitted price would not be a whole number of pennies, the 

Page 5



permitted price shall be taken to be the price rounded up to the nearest 
penny. 

(4) Where the permitted price on a day (“the first day”) would be different 
from the permitted price on the next day (“the second day”) as a result of a 
change to the rate of duty or value added tax, the permitted price which 
would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of alcohol which take 
place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second day. 

Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule 

1 No alcohol will be allowed to be consumed outside.

2 Windows and doors will be kept closed after 2200.

3 Alcohol shall not be sold or supplied on the premises otherwise than to 
persons taking table meals there and for consumption by such a person as 
ancillary to the meal.

4 The supply of alcohol will be by waiter/waitress service only and only to 
persons seated at tables.

5 The Licence Holder and the Designated Premises Supervisor are to support 
and rigorously enforce a Challenge 25 Proof of Age policy. Any person who 
looks or appears to be under the age of 25 shall be asked to provide 
identification that they are over the age of 18. The following are the only 
forms of identification acceptable: 

(a) UK photo driving licence
(b) Valid passport
(c) Proof of Age Standards Scheme Card

OR

(d) any other nationally or locally approved form of identification which 
may be  introduced in the future.

If no suitable identification is provided, sale of alcohol to them will be refused.

6 All staff to have received suitable training in relation to the proof of age 
scheme to be applied upon the premises.  Records to evidence this will be 
made available to an authorised officer upon request.

Page 6



7 A notice or notices shall be displayed in the premises where they can be 
clearly seen and read and will indicate that it is unlawful for persons under 18 
to purchase alcohol or for any person to purchase alcohol on behalf of a 
person under 18 years of age.

8 An authorisation of sales, signed and dated by the Designated Premises 
Supervisor, shall be kept at the premises showing all persons authorised by 
them to make sales of alcohol at the premises.

9 A personal licence holder (whose identity will be known to all other staff 
engaged in the sale or supply of alcohol) will be available to attend the 
premises whenever the sale or supply of alcohol is being undertaken, except 
in the case of emergency.

10 The licence holder and the Designated Premises Supervisor shall nominate 
another person, who will deputise for the Designated Premises Supervisor in 
the his/her absence, and shall ensure that the identity of the deputy is known 
by all other staff when such absence occurs.

11 Any person under the age of 16 must be accompanied by a responsible adult 
and remains the responsibility of the accompanying adult at all times when 
using the premises in the licensed areas of the premises. Members of staff are 
not allowed to be in sole supervision of children. 

12 No person in possession of an alcoholic drink in an unsealed container shall be 
allowed to enter or leave the premises. Appropriate measures will be taken to 
ensure staff prevent the removal of bottles and glasses from the curtilage and 
grounds of the licensed premises.  The Licence holder and the Designated 
Premises Supervisor shall erect and maintain signage on or adjacent to all 
exits advising patrons of this policy and the intention of staff to enforce a no 
exit with a bottle policy. 

13 The Licence Holder and the Designated Premises Supervisor shall ensure that 
only toughened glass or polycarbonate vessels are used to dispense beverages 
to customers.

14 Frequent collection of glasses and bottles will be undertaken to ensure that 
empty containers do not accumulate in or around the licensed premises.

15 An incident book will be maintained, in which shall be recorded:

(i) All incidents of crime and disorder
(ii) Refused sales to suspected under age / drunken persons

Page 7



(iii) A record of any person refused admission or asked to leave the 
premises
(iv) Details of occasions upon which the Police are called to the premises
(v) The use or discovery of drugs

That book shall be available for inspection by a Police Officer or authorised 
person.

16 An adequate number of licensed door supervisors will be on duty as 
appropriate to any risk assessment at the premises. 

17 All door staff employed at the entrance/exit of the licensed premises will wear 
a reflective jacket/tabard of a design approved by the Lancashire 
Constabulary.

18 Risk assessments carried out by or on behalf of the Licence holder which 
relate to a licensing objective will be available for inspection by a police officer 
or any authorised officer of a responsible authority.

19 CCTV will be installed internally and externally at the premises and will comply 
with the following; the CCTV system shall be installed, maintained and 
operated to the reasonable satisfaction of Lancashire Constabulary. All public 
areas of the premises are to be covered by the system. The system will 
incorporate a camera covering each of the entrance doors and will be capable 
of providing an image which is regarded as identification standard.

 The system will display on any recording the correct time and date of the 
recording.

 The system will make recordings during all hours the premises are open to 
the public.

 VCR tapes or digital recording shall be held for a minimum of 31 days and 
28 days respectively, after the recording is made and will be made 
available to the Police or any authorised persons acting for a Responsible 
Authority for inspection upon request.

 The system will, as a minimum, record images of the head and shoulders of 
all persons entering the premises. 

20 A staff member who is conversant with the operation of the CCTV system will 
be on the premises at all times the premises are open to the public. This staff 
member will be able to show recent data or footage with the absolute 
minimum of delay when requested to a Police Officer or to a Local Authority 
Enforcement Officer.

21 The Licence Holder or Designated Premises Supervisor shall notify the Police 

Page 8



Licensing Unit on any occasion when the CCTV is to be inoperative for a period 
in excess of one working day and shall provide a certificate from a competent 
person stating the reason for the system being inoperative and the measures 
which have been taken to satisfy the licence conditions.

22 Appropriate signage alerting customers to CCTV recording shall be displayed 
in conspicuous positions on the premises.

23 Annual documented maintenance checks of the CCTV system, including the 
recording system will be undertaken by the Designated Premises Supervisor 
to ensure that the system is in good working order and fit for purpose.

24 Security arrangements are sufficient to discourage the sale and consumption 
of drugs and shall ensure such arrangements include regular checks of toilet 
areas.

25 Confiscated and found drugs shall be stored, disposed, transferred in 
accordance with procedures agreed with the Lancashire Constabulary.

26 The licence holder and the Designated Premises Supervisor shall arrange 
adequate supervision of any queue which may form to gain entry to the 
premises.

27 The licence holder shall erect and maintain in a prominent position at every 
exit a clear and conspicuous notice requesting patrons to avoid causing noise, 
nuisance or disturbance to local residents.

28 The licensee shall ensure that staff arriving before 0900 or departing late at 
night when the business has ceased trading conduct themselves in such a 
manner to avoid disturbance to nearby residents.

29 The premises licence holder will arrange for litter dropped in the vicinity of 
the licensed premises to be collected and removed at the licence holder's 
expense at a frequency of not less than 60 minute intervals during opening 
hours.

30 For the purposes of the condition above, the collection and removal of litter 
should be taken to include the washing away to the gutter of spilled food and 
similar materials so as to leave the footway in a clean, safe and wholesome 
condition.

31 The premises licence holder will be expected to accept the Council's voluntary 
code of practice for litter and refuse. The code of practice is available from 
the Director of Technical Services.

Page 9



32 When food for consumption off the premises is sold, adequate waste 
receptacles for use by patrons shall be provided in the local vicinity. The 
positioning of the receptacles shall be agreed by the Council, and the 
responsibility for disposing of the collected waste shall rest with the licensee.

33 The licensee shall ensure that noise or vibration shall not emanate from the 
premises such as to cause persons in the neighbourhood to be disturbed. To 
this end sound insulation shall be provided and regard must be had to the 
ventilation requirements for the premises. All sound insulation shall be 
installed to the satisfaction of the Council.

34 The licensee shall ensure that cooking, noxious or persistent smells generated 
at the premises do not cause nuisance to nearby properties, and that the 
premises shall be adequately ventilated to the satisfaction of the Head of 
Environmental Services.

35 Flashing or bright lights on or outside the licensed premises shall be 
positioned or screened in such a manner so as not to cause inconvenience to 
nearby properties.

4.8 Does the information submitted include any exempt information? No

4.9 List of Appendices:

Appendix 4a: Application
Appendix 4b: Representation from Lancashire Constabulary
Appendix 4c: Representation from Licensing Authority
Appendix 4d: Representation from member of the public (Mr M 
Laurence)

5.0 Legal considerations:

5.1 Please see local and national policy in the background information.

6.0 Human Resources considerations:

6.1 None.

7.0 Equalities considerations:

7.1 None.

Page 10



8.0 Financial considerations:

8.1 None.

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 13

tsplseob
Typewritten Text
Appendix 4a 



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Blackpool Council Licensing Service 
 

Representation made by a Responsible Authority  
to an application for the grant / variation of a Premises Licence / 

Club Premises Certificate 

Responsible Authority  

Name of Responsible Authority LANCASHIRE CONSTABULARY 

Name of Officer    (please print) PS1747 Helen Parkinson 

Signature of Officer  

Contact telephone number 01253 604074 

Date representation made 12 04 18 

Do you consider mediation to be appropriate  NO 

Premises Details 

Premises Name La Casa 

Address 14 Dickson Road 

 Blackpool 

 Lancashire 

  

Post Code FY1 2AE 

Reasons for making representations 

I am in receipt of an application for a Major Variation to the Premises Licence for the above address. 
 
The variation includes increasing the hours for Late Night Refreshments until 05:00. 
 
On behalf of the Chief Officer of Police, having reviewed the application the Police make formal 
objections on the following grounds: 
 
The police base this objection on the following points: 

1) The premise falls within the current Town Centre Saturation area as part of the Council’s 
Cumulative Impact Policy. 

2) The number of current issues around crime and disorder the area is experiencing. 
3) A significant Licence breach at the premises themselves. 

 
When the current Saturation area was reviewed in 2013 a large part was removed leaving only those 
areas which currently require significant resourcing from police and other responsible authorities and 
the area where La Casa is located remains within this area.  The issues in this area of the Town 
Centre are mainly caused due to the behaviour of customers of all the premises together and not just 
one individual venue due to high concentration of late night licences already in place, both on-licences 
and take-aways. The Cumulative Impact Policy applies to applications to vary existing licences, as well 

 
 Page 103

tsplseob_1
Typewritten Text
Appendix 4b 



as new licences, where modifications are directly relevant to this issue. Police believe that in this case, 
an extension to current trading hours will have a detrimental impact.  
 
It is not only the number of on-licences that impact on the amount of crime and disorder and Public 
nuisance that is received but also the number of take-aways with late night licences in a vicinity. Take-
aways increase the number of people that gather in the area into the early hours, once they have left 
the drinking establishment. It provides a haven for people to hang around and once outside licensed 
venues where they are no longer supervised as closely disorder breaks out. 
 
This has recently been recognised by Blackpool Council as in their current statement of Licensing 
policy (2015-2019) point 4.7.3 states: 
 
Due to concerns about crime & disorder and anti-social behaviour arising from the number of 
takeaways in the area, the town centre saturation area is to be extended to include applications for late 
night refreshment. 
 
 
This area around Dickson Road and Queen Street is the most problematic area for Police in relation to 
alcohol related Crime and disorder in the whole of the Town Centre.  This is due to a number of 
reasons: this area has the two latest on-licenced venues and a number of take-aways that remain 
open into the early daytime hours.  The combination of drunk people and hot food attract a large 
number of revellers. There is also a bus stop directly outside La Casa where many will seek shelter 
whilst they eat their food.  Also into the early hours there are less Emergency Services’ resources. 
 
Between 1st August 2017 and 31st March 2018 police have identified 273 recorded incidents within the 
close vicinity to La Casa on Dickson Road, as shown in the map below (FIG. 1) between the hours of 
02:00 – 07:00. As a point of reference Flamingo Nightclub is indicated with a pink dot.  
 

                     FIG.1 
 
 
 
These incidents range from public order, nuisance, concerns for safety, assault and suspicious 
circumstances.  38% of these 273 incidents have been recorded between 2-4am, 23% between 4-5am 
and 39% between 5-7am.  As can be seen from the map this is an extremely small concentrated area 
to have this number of incidents.   
 
Examples of incidents within the highlighted area around Dickson Road are as follows: 
 
LC-20171001-0356     1st Oct 2017 at 04:55         Dickson Road 
Ambulance has had a call from a female who saw a male lying on the floor outside Wilko’s. They have 
been told that he had been kicked in the head but had also taken Spice. 
 

 
 Page 104



LC-20171001-0414      1st Oct 2017 at 06:32        Dickson Road 
Fight outside Wilkos, 12 people involved, all male. No injuries but getting out of control. Crime No 
WA1718091 refers 
 
LC-20171027-0186      27th Oct 2017 at 05:59       Dickson Road 
Ambulance attending a report of a 25 year old male having been punched to the head. Offender has 
left the area, Crime No WA1719732 refers 
 
LC-20171029-0426      29th Oct 2017 at 06:44      Dickson Road 
2 males fighting, group of 8 surrounding the, some girls trying to stop it.  Crime No WA1719825 refers 
 
LC-20171106-0125      6th Nov 2017 at 03:15      Dickson Road 
There is a group of males and females with crow bars; they are walking up Dickson Road. They had 
pieces of wood as well. 
 
LC-20171216-0322      16th Dec 2017 at 04:52       Flamingos, Queen St 
There are a number of people fighting. They are at the back entrance of Flamingos. They have come 
spilling out of the Club and are fighting. 
 
LC-20180123-0144       23rd Jan 2018 at 05:04       Kaos, Queen St 
Officer reports having pava’d someone outside Kaos. Male and female arrested. The female is banging 
her head against the cage requiring officer assistance in custody. 
 
LC-20180214-04:14      14th Feb 2018 at 04:14       Flamingos, Queen St 
A large male is kicking off; he has been kicked out of the Club. Informant advised Police need to hurry 
up because this male is going ‘absolutely nuts’. Caller could hear male shouting in the background. 
 
LC-20180312-0091       12th March 2018 at 03:05     Dickson Rd 
Caller is a taxi driver and states that there is a male they are refusing to take as he is being abusive.  
As a result he has threatened to smash his windows.  The male is now on Queen St opposite Kaos.  
He has threatened 6 taxi drivers. 
 
LC-20180319-0112       19th March 2018 at 06:30      Dickson Rd 
Inft reporting her son has been assaulted in a takeaway. He was trying to pay for his pizza, his card 
was declined. Then a female squared up to him, so he held his receipt to her face, and then he got 
punched on the side of the head by her friend.  
 
LC-20180407-0299        7th April 2018 at 06:18     Dickson Rd 
There is a fight ongoing about 20 people involved. Females and males, outside Boozebusters, Inft 
can’t see any weapon. They are in the road fighting. 
 
LC-20180410-0159,0160,0161     10th April 2018 at 06:07     Dickson Rd 
Fight – at least 50 people – the instigator 6ft is now unconscious. Guy who hit him is wearing a 
camoflauge jacket. A male has been overheard saying he was going home to a get a knife. He is 
bleeding from his head and eyes. 
 
 
Police and Council have been working hard in this area for around 5 years now and in that time an on-
licence venue and several take-aways have been reviewed to try to help tackle the problem, however 
the issues continue.   
 
In June and July 2017 Licensing were receiving regular reports regarding issues around the area of the 
top end of Queen Street and Dickson Road. As a consequence joint visits took place in the early hours 
to ascertain the extent of the problem.  Following these visits, on 28th September two take-aways 
directly across the road from La Casa were taken to review due to issues with compliance with 
licensing conditions alongside the amount of crime and disorder in the area.  Both premises had their 
late night refreshment licences reduced to 3am. Both premises appealed the decision but then 
withdrew in March this year when the appeal was due to be heard at Magistrates Court. 

 
 Page 105



In December 2017 Police ran a further evidence gathering Operation in the area to ascertain whether it 
was certain premises in particular causing the issues or the cumulative effect of all of them together.  
The Operation came at a cost to Police, as resources are lower between 3-7am it had to be run on 
overtime.  The Operation did result in some breaches being highlighted, however, through spending 
time in the area during these peak times, it was evident that the main issue stems from the ‘perfect 
storm’ these premises jointly create: two very late night venues and four take-aways resulting in many 
drunken people, hovering around an area, getting food and mixing together.  One more would just 
enhance the problem further. 
 
It is accepted that the lack of police resources at the later time will contribute to the issues with Crime 
and disorder but at the same time it must be noted that it is a premise’s choice to open at the more 
high-risk times and it isn’t the Police’s responsibility to ‘Police their Licence’, Police shouldn’t be 
expected to put provide more resources because a venue wishes to open later. 
 
As previously mentioned, two premises with late-night refreshment licences were recently reviewed 
due to licence breaches as well as the issues in the area. This area demands Licence holders of the 
highest quality, with the upkeep of the licensing objectives foremost in their working ethic, to manage 
such a problem area.  
 
On Tuesday 10th April 2018 at 13:00 I attended La Casa in company with Mark Marshall, Licensing 
Manager for Blackpool Council, to speak to owner and DPS Mr Magdy Aly Farag. Whilst at the 
premises Mr Marshall asked Mr Aly Farag to operate the CCTV system and playback from the 
previous Saturday night at approx. 03:15hours (8th April).   La Casa currently only has a late night 
refreshment licence until 03:00hours on a Friday and Saturday night. 
 
Premises Open Hours Requested  

 Time From Time To 
Sunday – Thursday 17:30 01:00 
Friday – Saturday 17:30 03:00 
Activities - Times Requested  

 Time From Time To 
F. Playing of recorded music (Indoors)   
Sunday - Thursday 17:30 01:00 
Friday - Saturday 17:30 03:00 
I. Late night refreshment (Indoors)   
Sunday - Thursday 23:00 01:00 
Friday - Saturday 23:00 03:00 
J. Supply of alcohol for consumption ON the premises only   
Sunday - Thursday 17:30 01:00 
Friday - Saturday 17:30 03:00 
 
 
On playing back the CCTV it could clearly be seen that Mr Aly Farag was serving customers well after 
the 03:00 terminal hour (shown in the photos below) and only started to close up the premises around 
04:15hour. This in breach of his licensable hours. 
 
 

 
 Page 106



 
 
 

 
 
 
The first picture shows Mr Aly Farag cooking food with customers stood at the counter and also some 
sat a tables at 03:37 hours. 
The second photo shows a group sat inside at 03:58 with food and another inside still waiting for food. 
 
When asked about the footage Mr Aly Farag firstly stated that he has never breached any licensing 
conditions and claimed that he hadn’t altered his clocks from two weeks previously when they changed 
to British Summer Time, so he states it is actually 02:58 in picture 2.  It was pointed out to Mr Aly 
Farag that the clocks moved forward on 24th March, not backwards, so if the clocks on the CCTV 
hadn’t been changed the time would actually be 04:58. 
 
To confirm the accuracy on the clock timings I took a picture in real time whilst at the premises and 
matched it to the clock on my Samsung device.  The pictures below confirms the timings on Mr Aly 
Farag’s CCTV are accurate: 

 
 Page 107



 
  
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
The picture was recorded as being taken at 13:12hours on 10/04/18 on my Samsung device and the 
time on the CCTV system shows 13:11hours on 10/04/18. 
 
Mr Aly Farag then stated he was on his own and didn’t realise the time as the clock doesn’t work that is 
on the wall and he doesn’t wear a watch. Mr Marshall then pointed out the clock on his till display but 
Mr Aly Farag stated he wasn’t good with the till system, although this wouldn’t stop him from seeing the 
time. 
 
Mr Aly Farag stated he saw that the area was busy and at the last minute decided to open. Due to the 
short notice he wasn’t able to get any other staff in so he was on his own.  This indicates that Mr Aly 
Farag’s only concern on the night in question was to make money; the area was busy so he wanted to 
open up with no regard to conditions he needs to adhere to. He was there to simply make some 
money. He claimed to be struggling to pay some outstanding bills. 
 
Due to this, Police has serious concerns that Mr Aly Farag’s pure motive for this variation is to make 
money but there is a willingness to do it at whatever the cost.  As I have already demonstrated, this 

 
 Page 108



area is very high risk when it comes to crime and disorder and needs operators to be of the highest 
standard, with the upkeep of the licensing objectives foremost in their operation, Mr Aly Farag has 
clearly demonstrated here that profit is his main and only concern. 
 
In his application, Mr Aly Farag has offered conditions to help safeguard the licensing conditions.  
Firstly, the above evidence shows that he cannot be trusted to upkeep licensing conditions.  Secondly, 
he has offered to close at 05:15.  This time falls outside licensable hours and therefore there are no 
controlling sanctions that can be placed on the premises. Should Mr Aly Farag change his mind and 
open then he is free to do so.  As I have already evidenced 5am – 7am is still a very busy time in this 
immediate area so why would a business (who has already admitted to struggling financially) close at 
the busiest time when they don’t have to? 
 
Two premises were reviewed in September last year for showing little regard to their licensing 
conditions and the licensing objectives and the committee saw fit to reduce their hours to 3am.   
 
Lancashire Constabulary has significant concerns that crime and disorder will increase if this premises 
is allowed to increase the licensable hours. This will add to the cumulative impact already being 
experienced within the Town Centre Saturation Area and would lead to further alcohol fuelled crime 
and disorder and contribute to the stress and further burden on the emergency services.  
 
 

It is recommended that the licence should only be granted if the application is amended, or if 
conditions are applied, as detailed below. 

 
N/A 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 Page 109



This page is intentionally left blank



Blackpool Council Licensing Service 
 

Representation made by a Responsible Authority  
 

Responsible Authority  

Name of Responsible Authority Licensing Authority 

Name of Officer    (please print) Mark Marshall 

Signature of Officer  

Contact telephone number 01253-478493 

Date representation made 12 04 2018 

Do you consider mediation to be appropriate  NO 

Premises Details 

Premises Name La Cassa  

Address Dickson Road 

 Blackpool 

  

  

Post Code FY1 2AE 

Details of your representation (Please refer and attach any supporting documentation) 

 
The premises in question have rarely been open during the winter months and I was approached prior 
to the application being submitted to seek my views on an extension to the hours. The premises 
currently have a terminal hour of 3am.  
 
My advice was that we had struggled for many years with the takeaways on Dickson Road, the major 
problem being the protracted dispersal from the area when the Clubs close and the very late hour that 
takeaways continue to operate which can have an impact with the early morning day time economy. 
 
The Licensing Authority on previous decisions have chosen to revoke licences as well as reduce the 
hours of certain premises but it is only in very recent weeks that 2 recent decisions have been ratified 
by the Magistrates so as such it is too early to say if the reduction in hours has addressed the root 
cause of the problem. 
 
The applicant was given the explanation above and also advised that his proposals may give rise to 
objections but he was not deterred from making an application and was given some advice on 
measures that he could introduce to lessen the impact on the Licensing Objectives. He was amenable 
during this conversation to adopt whatever condition or restriction was necessary. 

RA Representation Form 
LS/F/009/16/1 Page 111

tsplseob_2
Typewritten Text
Appendix 4c 



On the Monday 9th April 2018 I was in the alley way to the rear of the property and noticed a build-up of 
combustible waste to the rear of the property and unsafe  rotten stairs leading from the fire escape.  
 

  
 
 

  
 

RA Representation Form 
LS/F/009/16/1 Page 112



 
 

 
 
The same day I also received information that the premises were open beyond its hours and traded till 
5am. I arranged to meet the applicant the following day at 1pm. I attended the premises with Danny 
Stephenson and Sgt Helen Parkinson. I checked the rear area and confirmed the door leading to the 

RA Representation Form 
LS/F/009/16/1 Page 113



back was a fires escape that would be utilised by staff, as such I expressed concern regarding the 
safety of the decking and steps, numerous boards were rotten and very unstable, they felt they would 
fail at any time especially with 2 or 3 people walking over them in succession. The surface area of the 
decking was very slippery and hazardous. The applicant was aggregable to addressing the problems 
with the decking and clearing the waste so that a clear exit route could be maintained. 
 
We then checked on the CCTV system which was very good in terms of its coverage and clarity, the 
applicant was also conversant with its use, I asked for him to pull images from the 8th April at 03.15 
hrs. 
Numerous files were available in a time order; they appeared to be in 45minute chunks and related to 
the respective cameras in chronological order. We asked him to pull up one of the files which showed 
images from within the takeaway, the time of the image was 03.46hrs and showed a group of males 
eating food on the tales, demonstrating that the takeaway was still open. The applicant’s response to 
these images was to suggest that the time on the system was incorrect as he had not changed it 
following the change to British Summer Time. 
This excuse caused some confusion as if the system was only an hour out then the actual time of the 
recording would have been 04.46hrs (as the clocks went forward at the end of March) the applicant did 
not understand this point at first and maintained his position of suggesting the time on the system was 
wrong and he always complies with his opening hours. 
We then moved the system back to live recordings and the time display was correct as per our 
respective watch’s, again the applicant maintained the system recordings were wrong and he complies 
with his Licensable hours. 
I then pulled up a different camera from the 8th April, this camera showed images of the kitchen and 
people ordering food at the counter, I set the recording running from 03.00hrs and put it on x4 
(forward). 
As the recording moved on it was clear that customers were coming into the takeaway and numerous 
food orders were being prepared. 
The applicant was the only person in the kitchen on this night and he changed his position slightly by 
saying as he was on his own and busy he didn’t realise the time. We let the images roll on till 04.15 hrs 
and the recordings without question demonstrated that a significant amount of customers had been 
served hot food after the terminal hour of 03.00hrs. 
After the recordings had finished, the applicant finally admitted that he was busy on the night but still 
maintained he didn’t realise the time , at this point I took him to the till behind the counter, which was 
an electronic till system, I asked if he could pull back the orders he rang through on the Sat/Sun 
morning, he claimed not to be able to use the till system but it was very apparent the time of day was 
displayed in the top left corner of the display screen, I noted the time was 8 minutes faster than my 
watch but pointed out that he would realise what the time was every time an order was cashed in. 
 
 

RA Representation Form 
LS/F/009/16/1 Page 114



 
 
As we concluded the discussion I explained there was clear evidence that he had breached the 
conditions/ terminal hour of the licence and that he could be prosecuted for the offence. Both Sgt 
Parkinson and I explained that our concerns would be reported to the Committee who would have the 
ultimate decision as to whether the variation was granted. 
 
In view of the findings on the day and the fact that takeaways now make part of the saturation policy 
which suggest a closing time of 2am for LNRL I would say the application should be rejected. 
 
The committee would need to have a great amount of faith in an operator applying for later hours in an 
area that suffers from so many Crime related problems and the limited amount of dealings I have had 
with this applicant have sadly shown that there are far more concerns than positive experiences and 
therefore he is not a man who can be relied on to honour the proposals put forward in his application. 
 
 
Blackpool Statement of Licensing policy recognises the issue from later hours and recommends 
terminal hours for categories of premises; 
 
4.4.2 The Authority proposes to introduce a framework of core hours for licensable activities 
at 
premises: 
 
Premises Type Commencement hour for 
sale of alcohol 
Terminal hour 
Off-licence 10.00 am 23.00 pm 
Restaurant 10.00 am 01.00 am 
Other on-licenced 
premises 
10.00 am 02.00 am 
Takeaway n/a 02.00 am 

RA Representation Form 
LS/F/009/16/1 Page 115



 
4.4.3 This framework will apply to apply to applications for new premises licences and to 
applications 
for variations to extend the hours for licensable activities (earlier and later in the case of the 
sale 
of alcohol). Applicants are advised not to exceed these core hours when submitting a licence 
application in order to avoid representations . 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

For New / Variation Applications only. 
It is recommended that the licence should only be granted if the application is amended, or if 
conditions are applied, as detailed below. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

RA Representation Form 
LS/F/009/16/1 Page 116



Page 117

tsplseob_3
Typewritten Text
Appendix 4d 



Page 118


	Agenda
	4 APPLICATION FOR THE VARIATION OF A PREMISES LICENCE- LA CASA
	Appendix 4a La Casa variation application 190318
	Appendix 4a continued La Casa applicant additional evidence 210518
	Appendix 4b La Casa police objection 120418
	Blackpool Council Licensing Service
	Representation made by a Responsible Authority 
	to an application for the grant / variation of a Premises Licence / Club Premises Certificate
	Responsible Authority 
	LANCASHIRE CONSTABULARY
	01253 604074
	18
	04
	12
	NO
	Do you consider mediation to be appropriate
	La Casa

	Appendix 4c La Casa Licensing Authority (MM) objection 130418
	Blackpool Council Licensing Service
	Representation made by a Responsible Authority 
	Responsible Authority 
	Licensing Authority
	01253-478493
	2018
	04
	12
	NO
	Do you consider mediation to be appropriate
	La Cassa 

	Appendix 4d La Casa public objection (Laurence) 030418




